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2020-21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Melina Hong (Data Manager) and Liz Evans (Director of Operations) prepared this 2020-21 
Accountability Progress Report on behalf of the school’s board of trustees: 

Trustee’s Name 
Board Position 

Office (e.g. chair, treasurer, 
secretary)  

Committees (e.g. finance, 
executive) 

Mimi Barnes-Coppola Trustee/Member Academic Excellence, 
Nominating 

Lacole Brumfield Trustee/Member None 
Jennifer Bernacki-Smith Vice Chair Executive, Space Planning 

Ed Castine Trustee/Member Audit/Finance 
Kathy Franklin-Adams Trustee/Member Academic Excellence 

Evelyn Kerney Trustee/Member Fundraising 
Matthew Moscati Treasurer Audit/Finance, Executive, 

Space Planning 
Joshua Pennel Trustee/Member None 
Pamela Pollock Secretary Executive, Academic 

Excellence 
Matthew Ryan Trustee/Member Fundraising, Audit/Finance 

Elizabeth Santacrose Chair Executive, Academic 
Excellence, Nominating 

Jamie Smith Parent Rep Nominating, Academic 
Excellence 

Anna Sotelo-Peryea Parent Rep None 

Elizabeth Fisher has served as EVCS Hertel’s Principal since 2020. 

Elmwood Village Charter School Hertel 2020-21 Accountability Plan Progress Report 
Page 2 of 18 



  

 
                                        

 

 

  

  
 

 
  

 

 
   

 

 

 
   

 
 

    
  

   
   

 
  

 

 
 

  
   

 
  

   

   

 
  

2020-21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

SCHOOL OVERVIEW 
The Elmwood Village Charter School Hertel opened its doors to 150 students in grades K-2 in 2017 
as a replication of the Elmwood Village Charter School (now EVCS Days Park). EVCS Hertel has just 
completed its fourth year of instruction, educating 300 students in grades K-5 amidst the challenges 
of a pandemic. The School begins its fifth year of operation with 350 students in grades K-6, with a 
nascent middle school program in September 2021. 

The mission of the School is as follows: “The Elmwood Village Charter Schools will provide a 
stimulating and engaging learning environment that recognizes student capability, fosters their 
connectedness to their immediate and broader communities, and offers them ways to contribute to 
school life. EVCS believes that all students can and will learn at high levels when provided with the 
right learning conditions.”

 Key Design Elements: 

● Small, K-8 community: EVCS has 2 classrooms per grade level, with all its students located in 
the same facility, building a sense of closeness and community. 

● Student-Teacher Ratio: each classroom has a small student-teacher ratio (with one certified 
teacher and a teaching assistant in each classroom, and a special education teacher at each 
grade level), which allows for more individualized attention and higher quality education. 

● Community alliances: students interact with community leaders, institutions, and artists; 
EVCS students participate in community projects, which build relationships and give students 
a sense of agency. 

● Responsive Classroom model: based on the belief that there is a direct correlation between strong 
social skills on the one hand, and academic competence and success on the other. Responsive 
Classroom is a research and evidence-based approach to elementary education that leads to 
greater teacher effectiveness, higher student achievement, and improved school climate. 

● Longer daily schedule and school year:  The school day runs from 8:00 am to 3:15 p.m., with 
optional before-care and after-care. This provides students with approximately one extra day 
of instruction per week compared to the district of location. The school has a minimum of 185 
instructional days per year. 

● More time on task:  extended periods are provided for the core subjects (English Language 
Arts and Math) along with tutoring and enrichment opportunities. 

● Interdisciplinary curriculum: EVCS emphasizes cross-curricular educational development 
where the connection between different fields of knowledge is shown through theme-based 
and project-focused instruction. 

● Arts integration: arts are used as a catalyst for teaching across the curriculum to broaden and 
deepen the assimilation of the material presented in core subjects.  This program of 
integration has been shown to improve students’ test scores. 

● Parental involvement: Students do better in school when parents communicate with teachers 
and become involved in the school.  EVCS has added opportunities for parent-teacher 
communication and for parental participation in school activities and events.  
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● Morning meeting in every classroom every day. Whole school morning meeting, led and 
planned by students once a month. 

● Technology integration: EVCS is committed to using educational technologies in support of 
student success.  Technology is used in targeted ways to address learning difficulties and 
move more students toward proficiency.  Media and information literacy are developed 
through the classroom and librarian. 

● Instructional coaching: EVCS sees our teaching staff as a great asset and their continued 
development over time is critical to student success. EVCS employs three instructional 
coaches and a curriculum director who provide classroom teachers with targeted feedback 
and support in order to continue to get better. 

Remote Learning and COVID-19 Impact 

● In March 2020, EVCS pivoted to a remote learning program where there was a continued 
focus on providing a stimulating and engaging learning environment virtually. Without 
skipping a single planned instructional day, EVCS launched remote learning through Google 
Classroom. 

● EVCS started the 20/21 school year with all students learning remotely. The EVCS 
administrative and operations teams planned for the redeployment of Chromebooks, iPads, 
hotspots, and laptops. EVCS purchased and deployed enough devices for each student to 
have an internet enabled device, either Chromebooks or iPads for younger students. 

● Key programmatic adjustments made for remote learning at EVCS included implementing 
online tools for math and science (Zearn math, Amplify Science). EVCS continued to leverage 
Zoom for live synchronous learning, small group work, and individual support. 

● Starting on 1/19/21, EVCS families could elect for remote or hybrid learning. Students 
enrolled in hybrid attended in-person classes on either Monday/Tuesday OR 
Wednesday/Thursday. Families were given 2 additional opportunities to opt into hybrid 
learning. Initially, approximately 60% of students were in hybrid learning. By the end of the 
year approximately 75% of students were in hybrid learning. Starting in April, “at risk” 
students (such as students with IEPs, students with mental health challenges) were given 
the option for in-person learning 4 days a week. 

● To support student social emotional health, teachers/assistant teachers had weekly touch 
points with students and continued with a daily full class morning meeting (even when half 
of the students were in person and half remote) to build culture and support students 
emotionally. The Student Support team (including staff such as a Behavior Specialist, 
Wellness Specialist, Counselor, and other related services) followed up with specific 
students needing additional support. In SY 21/22, EVCS will implement the “Fly Five” 
curriculum (which aligns to our Responsive Classroom model) and also leverage the 
Panorama student survey to track student SEL progress. In addition, EVCS Hertel has opened 
a new position for a social worker to provide students and families with an advocate that 
can assist them with locating and taking advantage of available resources. 
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ENROLLMENT SUMMARY 
School Enrollment by Grade Level and School Year 

School 
Year K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Tota 

l 
2016-17 

2017-18 50 49 49 148 

2018-19 50 51 51 49 201 

2019-20 50 51 49 51 51 252 

2020-21 43 52 52 53 52 50 302 

GOAL 1: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

ELEMENTARY AND MIDDLE ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 
Goal 1: English Language Arts 
Elmwood Village Charter School Hertel students will be proficient readers, writers, and speakers of 
the English language as demonstrated by academic attainment and growth on the STAR Reading 
and STAR Early Literacy assessment. 

Measure 1: Each year, the median SGP between BOY and EOY for 3rd through 8th grade students will 
be equal to or greater than 50. 

Measure 2: Each year, the median SGP between BOY and EOY for 3rd through 8th grade students 
who were two or more grade levels below grade level a BOY will be equal to or greater than 55 by 
EOY 

Measure 3: Each year, the median SGP between BOY and EOY for 3rd through 8th grade students 
who are economically disadvantaged will be equal to or greater than the median change in SGP 
between BOY and EOY for 3rd through 8th grade students who are not economically disadvantaged 

Measure 4: Each year, 75% of 3rd through 8th grade students enrolled in at least their second year at 
the school will score a Percentile of 60 or higher. 

BACKGROUND 
In SY2021, ELA was taught in alignment with the NYS Next Generation Learning Standards. EVCS 
utilized the STAR ELA Assessment to evaluate student progress in Reading (2-8) and Literacy (K-1). 

During the pandemic, ELA was taught remote via synchronous Zoom sessions for all grades between 
September and mid-January. In-mid January, EVCS shifted to a hybrid model where students 
received ELA and Reading instruction in-person twice a week. 
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METHOD 
EVCS administered the STAR Reading (grades 2-8) and Literacy (grades K & 1) assessment three 
times during the 20/21 school year: Beginning of the Year (September), Middle of the Year 
(January), End of Year (June). For the 20/21 school year, and in years in the past, we have used the 
STAR to identify struggling students, monitor student growth and gaps, identify strengths/gaps in 
skills, and to project proficiency on the NYS exam.  

Through an internal study in 2019, we know that EVCS’ bar for proficiency on the STAR (PR greater 
than or equal to 60) has been very predictive of student success on the NYS ELA assessment. 
Renaissance, the company that owns the STAR test, has also shown a strong alignment between 
scores on the STAR Reading test and the NYS ELA assessment (see this resource).  

During 2020-21, the school(s) primarily used the following exam to assess student growth and 
achievement in ELA:  STAR 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
EVCS Hertel did not meet the four academic ELA goals for SY20/21. 

For Measure #1, students in grade three met the goal (Median SGP = 51), but students in grades 4 
and 5 fell short of the target. For Measure #2, EVCS students who were low initial achievers had an 
SGP that was higher than the overall average but did not meet the goal of SGP = 55. At EVCS Hertel 
for grades 3-5, this is a very small population with only 7 students starting 2 grades or more behind 
based on the STAR GE levels. 

For Measure #3, most students in grades 3-5 are categorized as Economically Disadvantaged. This 
group had an SGP lower than the school average, meaning that these students did not grow more 
than students who are not economically disadvantaged. Since there is more economic diversity in 
younger grades at EVCS Hertel, it will be important to continue to track this goal. 

EVCS Hertel did not meet the absolute measure set in Measure #4. While more students were 
proficient in the 3rd grade (41.2%) than the 4th (33.3%) or 5th (15.2%) grade, no EVCS Hertel grades 
met this goal. While we have not met the comparable APPR absolute measure for this goal in the 
past, the impact of COVID-19 and remote/hybrid learning certainly contributed to the lower 
proficiency and lower growth on the STAR ELA test than previous years. 

EVCS Hertel teachers review student results with their instructional coaches in their weekly PLC 
meetings. These meetings allow teachers to digest student data and differentiate student groups. 
Early identification of students who needed additional support for ELA via AIS allowed students who 
were behind to get additional support. 
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2020-21 STAR ELA Assessment End of Year Results 
Measures 

Subgroup Target 
Student 
Count 

Result 
s 

Met 

Measure 1: Each year, the median SGP 
between BOY and EOY for 3rd through 
8th grade students will be equal to or 
greater than 50  

All students 50 147 37.0 No 

Measure 2: Each year, the median SGP 
between BOY and EOY for 3rd through 
8th grade students who were two or more 
grade levels below grade level at BOY will 
be equal to or greater than 55 by EOY 

Low initial 
achievers 55 7 38.0 No 

Measure 3: Each year, the median SGP 
between BOY and EOY for 3rd through 
8th grade students who are economically 
disadvantaged will be equal to or greater 
than the median change in SGP between 
BOY and EOY for 3rd through 8th grade 
students who are not economically 
disadvantaged 
Measure 4: Each year, 75% of 3rd through 
8th grade students enrolled in at least their 
second year at the school will score a 
Percentile (PR) of 60 or higher on the EOY 
test. 

Economically 
disadvantage 

d students 

2+ students 

>= not 
economically 
disadvantage 

d 

75%

118

 142 

 33.5 

30.5% 

No 

No 

End of Year Performance on 2020-21 STAR ELA Assessment 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

All Students Students enrolled in at least their Second 
Year 

Grade Student Count # Proficient % Proficient Student Count # Proficient % Proficient 
3 52 21 40.4% 51 21 41.2% 
4 48 15 31.3% 45 15 33.3% 
5 48 8 16.7% 46 7 15.2% 

All 148 44 29.7% 142 43 30.3% 

Elmwood Village Charter School Hertel 2020-21 Accountability Plan Progress Report 
Page 7 of 18 



  

 
                                        

 

 

  
 

  
  
  
  

 

  

 
   

    
   
   

 

 
 

 

 
 

   

 

  

   
  

  
  

2020-21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

End of Year Growth on 2020-21 STAR ELA Assessment 
By All Students 

Grade Student Count Median SGP 
3 51 51.0 
4 48 30.0 
5 48 34.5 

All 147 37.0 

End of Year Growth on 2020-21 STAR ELA Assessment 
Other Measures 

Other Measures 
Student 
Count Results 

Median SGP for students with disabilities 34 25.0 
Average SGP for students with disabilities 34 33.0 
Median change in Grade Equivalencies* (BOY to EOY) 140 0.5 
Average change in Grade Equivalencies* (BOY to EOY) 140 0.5 

*Students with BOY GE>=2 are excluded from this calculation 

ADDITIONAL CONTEXT AND EVIDENCE 
STAR testing was completed in school whenever possible, but all BOY and some MOY and EOY 
testing was completed remotely due to the pandemic. In looking at STAR results this year, we 
noticed that many students were taking far less time completing assessments than is expected. 
While EVCS Hertel staff worked persistently to engage students in school, it seems likely that many 
students took the STAR test and did not put forth their best effort as they have done in the past. In 
observing classrooms, talking with teachers/students/families, and reviewing data, we do feel that 
less growth was made than in prior years on average, but at least some part of these lower scores 
was a result of student fatigue with the pandemic. We are looking forward to having our students 
back to in-person learning, 5 days a week, for the 21/22 school year and expect to see student 
growth improve. 

SUMMARY OF THE ELEMENTARY AND MIDDLE ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL 
For SY20/21, EVCS Hertel did not meet the academic goals set for ELA. While students in grade 3 
met the goal for growth (SGP), students in other grades did not. Proficiency on the STAR ELA at 
EVCS Hertel did not meet the very high bar of 75%. 

When comparing end of year results on the STAR ELA with historic results on the STAR (for SY17/18 
and SY18/19), this year’s results were far lower. While EVCS Hertel continued to provide rigorous 
and strategic ELA programming as described above, the burden of the pandemic certainly had an 
impact on this year’s proficiency and growth on the STAR ELA assessment. 
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ACTION PLAN 
All EVCS Hertel students will return to 5-days a week of in-person learning for SY21/22. While the 
pandemic will certainly continue to impact school and instruction, getting closer to EVCS Hertel’s 
“normal” operations will support stronger achievement in ELA. 

In addition, to address learning lost over the pandemic, EVCS Hertel has opened a new position for 
a Learning Specialist who will work with students on a pull out and push in basis to help address 
learning gaps exacerbated by the pandemic. These specialists are long-time EVCS teachers who are 
highly effective at targeting interventions to maximize student growth. EVCS Hertel’s two AIS 
teachers will also continue to provide targeted support for students identified as title 1. 

EVCS Hertel will also create and roll out new Interim Assessments for ELA that better align to the 
recent changes in curriculum. EVCS is currently working with ANET to build new, better aligned 
interims for the 21/22 school year. The results of interim assessments will be immediately 
disaggregated by content standard, allowing teachers to identify strengths and weaknesses in 
students’ understanding. Teachers will meet in grade level teams to compare results, share 
instructional strategies and lessons, and plan for re-teaching. Data from each classroom will be 
submitted to the Director of Curriculum and Instruction. 

EVCS Hertel will make several key shifts in the 21/22 school year in our ELA instruction: 

● Science of Reading: In 21/22, EVCS will be working to incorporate instructional practices 
aligned with the Science of Reading into ELA instruction, shifting from a balanced literacy 
approach to a structured literacy approach. In the lower grades, the primary intention 
behind this shift is to shore up Tier 1 instruction in foundational skills so that fewer students 
need Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions and more students are reading on grade level by third 
grade. 

● Really Great Reading: EVCS will be implementing this new program in grades K-3 with all 
students and grades 4-8 with students who have been identified for intervention to help 
close gaps in foundational skills. Really Great Reading will incorporate instructional practices 
aligned with the Science of Reading into ELA instruction, shifting from a balanced literacy 
approach to a structured literacy approach. 

● Really Great Reading Diagnostic: Starting in the 21/22 school year, all students in grades K-
3 will receive 5-7 minute diagnostic decoding assessments from Really Great Reading 3 
times a year (students in need of intervention will receive additional progress monitoring). 
These diagnostic decoding assessments will also be used to identify gaps for students in 
grades 4-8 who are reading significantly below grade level. These assessments will answer 
these key questions: Which students are struggling with decoding? What types of words are 
they struggling with? What is the source of the underlying confusion? They will also help 
determine where, within the Really Great Reading curriculum, students should be placed. 

● Novel-based Instruction: In grades 4-6 we are shifting from the basal-based Wonders 
content to whole-class novel-based instruction.  With this shift in materials, comes a shift 
away from heavily skills focused instruction, to instruction that is centered around building 
knowledge. EVCS had an opportunity to “test drive” this approach during the 2020-2021 
school year. We intend to build on this approach in SY 21/22, adding additional non-fiction 
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reading to build background knowledge, and building in more opportunities for written 
response and class discussion. 

● Small group reading: In addition to core reading instruction, one period a day is set aside 
for all students in grades K-6 for differentiated reading instruction. Students will rotate 
through teacher led groups and independent activities. For students who are not yet fluent 
readers (typically grades K-2), the focus will be on foundational skills such as phonemic 
awareness, phonics, and fluency. For more fluent readers, small groups will focus on close 
reading and discussion of how texts work (considering the impacts of the author’s word 
choices and structure), and rereading text. Teachers will use formative assessment to 
determine student needs. 

GOAL 2: MATHEMATICS 

ELEMENTARY AND MIDDLE MATHEMATICS 
Goal 2: Mathematics 
Elmwood Village Charter School Days Park students will be competent operators of mathematics, 
able to understand and apply mathematical theories, computation, and problem solving, as 
demonstrated by academic attainment and growth on the STAR Math Assessment. 

Measure 1: Each year, the median SGP between BOY and EOY for 3rd through 8th grade students will 
be equal to or greater than 50. 

Measure 2: Each year, the median SGP between BOY and EOY for 3rd through 8th grade students 
who were two or more grade levels below grade level a BOY will be equal to or greater than 55 by 
EOY 

Measure 3: Each year, the median SGP between BOY and EOY for 3rd through 8th grade students 
who are economically disadvantaged will be equal to or greater than the median change in SGP 
between BOY and EOY for 3rd through 8th grade students who are not economically disadvantaged 

Measure 4: Each year, 75% of 3rd through 8th grade students enrolled in at least their second year at 
the school will score a Percentile of 60 or higher. 

BACKGROUND 

During the pandemic, EVCS made a switch from Everyday Math in grades K-6 to Zearn.  Prior to this, 
we had been considering adopting a new Math curriculum in K-6 as the alignment of Everyday Math 
to the Next Generation Learning Standards was not as strong as we would have liked.  Remote 
instruction made the need for a change even more urgent, as there were very few online resources 
available for Everyday Math to support either synchronous or asynchronous instruction.  Zearn was 
chosen for the strength of its’ online component, which includes lesson delivery and scaffolded 
practice, as well as for the strong ratings from groups like Ed Reports. 
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EVCS seventh and eighth grade Math classes are departmentalized and taught by subject 
specialists.  Teachers build units and lessons aligned to the NYS Next Generation Learning Standards 
but are given a certain amount of autonomy to choose their resources. Teachers use Engage NY 
modules as a resource, but supplement with additional resources. 

EVCS offers Regents Algebra in addition to 8th grade mathematics to those students whose scores 
and work habits have qualified them to take this advanced math course. Passing the Regents exam 
can earn EVCS 8th graders high school credit. 

During the pandemic, Math was taught remote via synchronous Zoom sessions for all grades 
between September and mid-January. In-mid January, EVCS shifted to a hybrid model where 
students received Math instruction in-person twice a week. 

METHOD 
EVCS administered the STAR Math (grades 1-8) three times during the 20/21 school year: Beginning 
of the Year (September), Middle of the Year (January), End of Year (June). For the 20/21 school 
year, and in years in the past, we have used the STAR to identify struggling students, monitor 
student growth and gaps, identify strengths/gaps in skills, and to project proficiency on the NYS 
exam.  

Through an internal study in 2019, we know that EVCS’ bar for proficiency on the STAR (PR greater 
than or equal to 60) has been very predictive of student success on the NYS Math assessment. 
Renaissance, the company that owns the STAR test, has also shown a strong alignment between 
scores on the STAR Reading test and the NYS Math assessment (see this resource).  

During 2020-21, the school(s) primarily used the following exam to assess student growth and 
achievement in mathematics: STAR 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
EVCS Hertel did not meet the four academic Math goals for SY20/21. 

For Measure #1, all grades fell short of the goal of 50 for SGP. For Measure #2, EVCS students who 
were low initial achievers had an SGP that was lower than the overall average. At EVCS Hertel for 
grades 3-5, this is a very small population with only 7 students starting 2 grades or more behind 
based on the STAR GE levels. 

For Measure #3, most students in grades 3-5 are categorized as Economically Disadvantaged. This 
group had an SGP that was basically equivalent to the school average, meaning that these students 
did not grow more than students who are not economically disadvantaged. Since there is more 
economic diversity in younger grades at EVCS Hertel, it will be important to continue to track this 
goal.  

EVCS Hertel did not meet the absolute measure set in Measure #4. No EVCS Hertel grades met this 
goal. While we have not met the comparable APPR absolute measure for this goal in the past, the 
impact of COVID-19 and remote/hybrid learning certainly contributed to the lower proficiency and 
lower growth on the STAR Math test than previous years. 
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2020-21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

EVCS Hertel teachers review student results with their instructional coaches in their weekly PLC 
meetings. These meetings allow teachers to digest student data and differentiate student groups. 
Early identification of students who needed additional support for Math via AIS allowed students 
who were behind to get additional support. 

2020-21 STAR Math Assessment End of Year Results 

Measures Subgroup Target 
Student 
Count 

Result 
s Met 

Measure 1: Each year, the median SGP 
between BOY and EOY for 3rd through 
8th grade students will be equal to or 
greater than 50  
Measure 2: Each year, the median SGP 
between BOY and EOY for 3rd through 

All students 50 142 26.5 No 

8th grade students who were two or 
more grade levels below grade level at 
BOY will be equal to or greater than 55 
by EOY 
Measure 3: Each year, the median SGP 
between BOY and EOY for 3rd through 

Low initial 
achievers 55 7 18 No 

8th grade students who are 
economically disadvantaged will be 
equal to or greater than the median 
change in SGP between BOY and EOY for 

Economically 
disadvantage 

d students 

>= not 
economically 
disadvantage 

d 

115 26 No 

3rd through 8th grade students who are 
not economically disadvantaged 
Measure 4: Each year, 75% of 
3rd through 8th grade students enrolled 
in at least their second year at the 2+ students 75% 139 23.7% No 
school will score a Percentile (PR) of 60 
or higher on the EOY test. 

End of Year Performance on 2020-21 STAR Math Assessment 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

All Students Students enrolled in at least their Second 
Year 

Grad 
e Student Count # Proficient % Proficient Student Count # Proficient % Proficient 

3 52 18 34.6% 51 18 35.3% 
4 47 7 14.9% 44 7 15.9% 
5 46 9 19.6% 44 8 18.2% 

All 145 34 23.4% 139 33 23.7% 
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2020-21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

End of Year Growth on 2020-21 STAR Math Assessment 
By All Students 

Grade Student Count Median SGP 
3 50 34.5 
4 46 24.5 
5 46 24.0 

All 142 26.5 

End of Year Growth on 2020-21 STAR Math Assessment 
Other Measures 

Other Measures 
Student 
Count Results 

Median SGP for students with disabilities 32 12.0 
Average SGP for students with disabilities 32 14.0 
Median change in Grade Equivalencies* (BOY to EOY) 139 0.7 
Average change in Grade Equivalencies* (BOY to EOY) 139 0.6 

*Students with BOY GE >=2 are excluded from this calculation 

ADDITIONAL CONTEXT AND EVIDENCE 
STAR testing was completed in school whenever possible, but all BOY and some MOY and EOY 
testing was completed remotely due to the pandemic. In looking at STAR results this year, we 
noticed that many students were taking far less time completing assessments than is expected. 
While EVCS Hertel staff worked persistently to engage students in school, it seems likely that many 
students took the STAR test and did not put forth their best effort as they have done in the past. In 
observing classrooms, talking with teachers/students/families, and reviewing data, we do feel that 
less growth was made than in prior years on average, but at least some part of these lower scores 
was a result of student fatigue with the pandemic. We are looking forward to having our students 
back to in-person learning, 5 days a week, for the 21/22 school year and expect to see student 
growth improve. 

SUMMARY OF THE ELEMENTARY AND MIDDLE MATHEMATICS GOAL 
For SY20/21, EVCS Hertel did not meet the academic goals set for Math. Overall SGP was 26.5 and 
proficiency for students in their second year at EVCS Hertel was 35.3. 

When comparing end of year results on the STAR Math with historic results on the STAR (for 
SY17/18 and SY18/19), this year’s results were far lower. While EVCS Hertel continued to provide 
rigorous and strategic Math programming as described above, the burden of the pandemic certainly 
had an impact on this year’s proficiency and growth on the STAR Math assessment. 
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2020-21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

ACTION PLAN 
All EVCS Hertel students will return to 5-days a week of in-person learning for school year 21/22. 
While the pandemic will certainly continue to impact school and instruction, getting closer to EVCS 
Hertel’s “normal” operations will support stronger achievement in Math. 

During remote and hybrid instruction, EVCS was not able to implement Zearn with fidelity to the 
model. In school year 21/22 EVCS will implement the Zearn model of rotational groups, allowing 
smaller groups of students to receive the teacher-led instruction. This will allow for more student 
participation and more teacher feedback which we think will support growth that was lost during 
the pandemic. 

In addition, to address learning lost over the pandemic, EVCS Hertel has opened a new position for 
a Learning Specialist who will work with students on a pull out and push in basis to help address 
learning gaps exacerbated by the pandemic. These specialists are long-time EVCS teachers who are 
highly effective at targeting interventions to maximize student growth. EVCS Hertel’s two AIS 
teachers will also continue to provide targeted support for students identified as title 1. 

EVCS Hertel will also create and roll out new Interim Assessments for Math that better align to the 
recent changes in curriculum. EVCS is currently working with ANET to build new, better aligned 
interims for the 21/22 school year. The results of interim assessments will be immediately 
disaggregated by content standard, allowing teachers to identify strengths and weaknesses in 
students’ understanding. Teachers will meet in grade level teams to compare results, share 
instructional strategies and lessons, and plan for re-teaching. Data from each classroom will be 
submitted to the Director of Curriculum and Instruction. 

GOAL 3: SCIENCE  

ELEMENTARY AND MIDDLE SCIENCE 
Goal 3: Science 
Elmwood Village Charter School Hertel students will be proficient in scientific process and inquiry 
skills able to apply scientific knowledge and methods to explore and explain the world around them 
as demonstrated by academic attainment and growth on the EVCS science interim exams. 

BACKGROUND 

Mystery Science (K-5) Teachers in grades K-5 use the Mystery Science curriculum.  Mystery Science 
is aligned to the Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS). Each lesson is aligned to a topic, 
performance expectations, science and engineering practices, disciplinary core ideas, and 
crosscutting concepts. Science instruction at the Elmwood Village Charter School is designed to 
nurture the excitement which comes with a growing understanding of the world around 
us.  Instruction will be primarily inquiry-based, with emphasis placed on hands-on experiences, 
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2020-21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

experimentation, and field trips.  This will help students develop critical thinking, problem solving, 
and teamwork skills.  Each lesson contains a central mystery, a video, discussion questions, 
supplemental reading, and a hands-on activity. 

Middle School Science In grade 6, teachers will use the Amplify Science curriculum. This curriculum 
will be new to our Hertel campus, but teachers at our Days Park campus have been using it since 
the fall of 2020. The curriculum was adopted for its strong alignment to the Next Generation 
Science Standards (NGSS) and for the robust online components, which enable strong instruction 
and online lab work during remote instruction.  Students in 6th grade will take Earth & Space 
Science. 

Middle school students have lab sections built into their schedule, in addition to their regularly 
scheduled science class. During lab, students are engaged in activities that require them to utilize 
the scientific method to answer scientific questions based on the current topic of 
study.  Additionally, science instruction incorporates a variety of activities to analyze each topic of 
study on a deeper level.  Students engage in lab activities, hands-on simulations, virtual labs, and 
role playing or modeling activities.  Students often work in partners and groups during classroom 
activities.  Movement and peer interaction are an essential component of the science classroom 
and these activities fulfill a crucial need for students at this age. 

METHOD 
During the 20/21 school year, EVCS Hertel did not assess students in science with a common 
assessment outside of the NYS Science test (for grade 4). Teacher created assessments were used 
to assess mastery. EVCS plans to create new Interim Assessments for middle school students in the 
21/22 school year and will look to create new interim science assessments for elementary grades in 
the 22/23 school year. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Not applicable 

ADDITIONAL CONTEXT AND EVIDENCE 
Not applicable 

SUMMARY OF THE ELEMENTARY AND MIDDLE SCIENCE GOAL 
Not applicable 

ACTION PLAN 
Prior to the pandemic, EVCS Hertel was looking to update science interim assessments. We are 
looking to develop new Interim Assessments for science in the 21/22 school year for middle school 
grades, and in the 22/23 school year for elementary grades. 
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2020-21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

EVCS Hertel 6th grade students will begin using Amplify Science, which EVCS Days Park started using 
in SY20/21. This curriculum was adopted for its strong alignment to the Next Generation Science 
Standards (NGSS). 

GOAL 4: ESSA 
Due to COVID-19 and the subsequent changes to the state’s testing, accountability, and federal 
reporting requirements, the 2020-21 school accountability statuses are the same as those assigned 
for the 2019-20 school year. The 2019-20 accountability statuses were based on 2018-19 exam 
results.  Assigned accountability designations and further context can be found here. 

Goal 7: Absolute Measure 

Under the state’s ESSA accountability system, the school is in good standing:  the state has not 
identified the school for comprehensive or targeted improvement.  

METHOD 
Because all students are expected to meet the state's performance standards, the federal statute 
stipulates that various sub-populations and demographic categories of students among all tested 
students must meet the state standard in and of themselves aside from the overall school results. 
As New York State, like all states, is required to establish a specific system for making these 
determinations for its public schools, charter schools do not have latitude in establishing their own 
performance levels or criteria of success for meeting the ESSA accountability requirements.  Each 
year, the state issues School Report Cards that indicate a school’s status under the state 
accountability system. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
EVCS Hertel was designated as a school in good standing. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Accountability Status by Year 

Year Status 
2018-19 Good Standing 
2019-20 Good Standing 
2020-21 Good Standing 
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2020-21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

OTHER MEASURES 

Goal 5: Family Satisfaction 
Measure 1: 95% of responding parents will report they are satisfied with the school, as measured by 
an annual survey 

Measure 2: 85% of students will re-enroll for the following year, as measured by yearly BEDS day 
enrollment data 

METHOD 
For the annual survey, EVCS used the online service SurveyMonkey as the method for collecting 
responses related to family satisfaction with its schools. All attending families were sent messages 
requesting that they respond to the survey; reminders were sent before closing out the survey. 
Responses were collected in late May and early June, during approximately a three-week period. 
Questions on academics, programs, staffing, and school life were included. 

For student retention, EVCS tracks students who leave in the student information system 
(PowerSchool). To calculate retention, the SY18/19 enrollment as of BEDS day was compared to the 
SY19/20 enrollment as of BEDS day. The information is disaggregated by at-risk subgroups as well. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
2020-21 Family Survey Results 

EVCS Hertel’s end of year enrollment was 298 students. There were 158 surveys submitted. 

Question Percent of 
Respondents Satisfied 

Overall I am satisfied with Elmwood Village Charter School 95% 

2020-21 Student Retention Rate 

2019-20 Enrollment 
Number of Students 
Who Graduated in 

2019-20 

Number of Students 
Who Returned in 

2020-21 

Retention Rate 
2020-21 Re-enrollment ÷ 

(2019-20 Enrollment – Graduates) 
252 0 237 94.0% 

The school met the measure set out in the family satisfaction goal. EVCS continued to have a high 
degree of satisfaction. This is also clear by its retention rate from year to year. There are always 
individual concerns that are shared in the survey which gives the administration an opportunity to 
reexamine its programs and procedures. 
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2020-21 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Goal 6: Attendance 
Measure 1: EVCS Hertel will have a daily attendance rate of at least 95% 

METHOD 
EVCS Hertel’s attendance rate is tracked in its SIS. Teachers take attendance daily with office staff 
making corrections for students who are tardy, on suspension, or with an excused absence. Average 
daily attendance is frequently examined both in aggregate, and for individual students. During the 
pandemic, per NYS requirements, EVCS tracked remote and in-person attendance with different 
codes in PowerSchool. This change allowed us to both reflect on student attendance given the 
modality of instruction, and to communicate our teaching modality to the state. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
EVCS Hertel’s overall attendance was 93.5%. While EVCS Hertel did not meet the goal of 95%, it was 
able to maintain a similar ADA to previous years despite the impact of remote/hybrid instruction. 
With remote/hybrid instruction, EVCS Hertel introduced a weekly attendance report that was send 
out to parents via email that provided them with their student’s attendance for each core subject 
each week. This communication allowed parents to better support students and helped teachers 
identify students who were at risk. 

Average Daily 
Year Attendance 

Rate 
2017-18 94.4% 
2018-19 93.7% 

2019-20* 94.8% 
2020-21 93.5% 

* Only includes school days prior to school closure due to COVID-19 (September 4th – March 13th) 

In the coming years, EVCS plans to report measures on staff satisfaction and student SEL (via our 
Panorama Student Survey results). The 21/22 school year will be the first year that we pilot these 
measures. 
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ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOL HERTEL 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30, 2021 

ASSETS 2020-21 2019-20 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents  $  5,766,025  $  5,935,211 
Grants and contracts receivable 506,862 604,589 
Accounts receivables 480,031 -
Prepaid expenses                               191,873                                      36,175 
Contributions and other receivables                                             -                                                 - 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS                            6,944,791                                6,575,975 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net                          12,254,694                              11,365,578 

OTHER ASSETS                               150,000                                   150,000 

TOTAL ASSETS 19,349,485 18,091,553 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $  268,208  $  289,658 
Accrued payroll and benefits                            1,296,568                                1,125,391 
Deferred Revenue                                             -                                                 - 
Current maturities of long-term debt                               294,522                                   472,141 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable                                             -                                                 - 
Other                                             -                                                 - 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES                            1,859,298                                1,887,190 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred Rent                                             -                                                 - 
All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturities                            5,866,475                                7,144,397 

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES                            5,866,475                                7,144,397 

TOTAL LIABILITIES                            7,725,773                                9,031,587 

NET ASSETS 
Without Donor Restrictions                          11,574,677                                8,993,560 
With Donor Ristrictions                                  49,035                                      66,406 

TOTAL NET ASSETS                          11,623,712                                9,059,966 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET 
ASSETS                          19,349,485                              18,091,553 

CK - Should be zero - -



 

          

     
          
     
                             

                                

                                      
                                           
                                       
                                       

 

    
                

        
                      

                 
  

                          

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOL HERTEL 
Statement of Activities 

as of June 30, 2021 

 Without Donor 
Restrictions 

2020-21 
 With Donor 
Restrictions  Total 

2019-20

 Total 

REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Public School District

 Resident Student Enrollment 
 Students with disabilities

Grants and Contracts
 State and local 
 Federal - Title and IDEA 
 Federal - Other 
 Other 

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 

EXPENSES 
Program Services

 Regular Education 
 Special Education 
 Other Programs 

Total Program Services
Management and general
Fundraising

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions

 Foundations
 Individuals 
 Corporations 

Fundraising
Interest income
Miscellaneous income
Net assets released from restriction

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

 $        

 $  

 $  

     3,936,447 
                    418,461 

                                 - 
                    768,932 
                                 - 
                    602,450 
                                 - 
                                 - 

                5,726,290 

2,535,130 
                    639,100 
                    594,465 
                3,768,695 
                1,141,583 
                                 -
                4,910,278 

                    816,012 

-

                                 - 
                        4,405 
                        5,937 
                                 - 
                      62,406 
                      72,748 

                    888,760 

                    781,700 
                                 - 

 $  

 $                      

 $  

- 
                                 -

                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 

                                 - 

        - 
            - 
          - 

            - 
            - 

                                 - 
                                 - 

                                 - 

-
                      22,517 
                                 - 
                                 -
                                 - 
                                 - 
                    (62,406)
                    (39,889)

                    (39,889)

          32,078 
                                 - 

 $  

 $  

 $  

3,936,447 
                    418,461 

                                 - 
                    768,932 
                                 - 
                    602,450 

 - 
                                 - 

                5,726,290 

2,535,130 
                    639,100 
                    594,465 
                3,768,695 
                1,141,583 
                                 - 
                4,910,278 

                    816,012 

-
      22,517 

                                 - 
                        4,405 
                        5,937 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                      32,859 

                    848,871 

                    813,778 
                                 - 

 $            

 $                      

 $          

               3,391,930 
                         321,547 

                                          - 
                          90,944 

                                          - 
                  - 

                                               - 
                                               - 

                              3,804,421 

     2,158,049 
                525,139 

             672,231 
            3,355,419 
            1,051,495 

                                               - 
                              4,406,914 

                                (602,493) 

                    430,867 
                                    15,426 

                                       - 
                 1,023 

                   55,421 
                                    1,020 

                                               - 
                                 503,757 

                                  (98,736) 

                   912,514 
                                               - 

NET ASSETS END OF YEAR  $  1,670,460  $  (7,811)  $             1,662,649  $  813,778 



                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                   

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOL HERTEL 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30, 2021 

2020-21 2019-20 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets  $  11,035,493  $  10,066,133 
Revenues from School Districts - -
Accounts Receivable - -
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciation - -
Grants Receivable - -
Due from NYS - -
Grant revenues -                                                     - 
Prepaid Expenses                                                     -                                                     - 
Accounts Payable                                  (1,777,560)                                  (2,069,342) 
Accrued Expenses                                  (8,764,198)                                  (7,857,836) 
Accrued Liabilities                                                     -                                                     - 
Contributions and fund-raising activities                                    1,055,523                                       814,487 
Miscellaneous sources                                         16,854                                       136,811 
Deferred Revenue                                                     -                                                     - 
Interest payments                                     (238,755)                                     (247,955) 
Other                                       235,239                                       238,998 
Other                                                     -                                                     - 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  $  1,562,596  $  1,081,296 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment                                  (1,727,741)                                     (655,311) 
Other                                                     -                                                     - 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  $  (1,727,741)  $  (655,311) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt                                  (6,215,779)                                     (462,456) 
Other                                    6,211,738                                    1,451,500 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  $  (4,041)  $  989,044 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  $  (169,186)  $  1,415,029 
Cash at beginning of year                                    6,085,211                                    4,670,182 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR  $  5,916,025  $  6,085,211 
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ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTING PACKAGE 

JUNE 30, 2021 







 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.  The 
accompanying additional information as listed in the table of contents, including the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. 

The accompanying additional information, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, is the 
responsibility of management and is derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 20, 2021 on our 
consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report 
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  

October 20, 2021 

2 



                        
                          
                 

            

                        

                        
                 
                 

                 

                                  

               
                            
               

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Balance Sheets 

June 30, 2021 2020 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash 
Receivables (Note 2) 
Prepaid expenses and other 

$      5,766,025 
986,893 
191,873 

6,944,791 

$      5,935,211 
604,589 

36,175 
6,575,975 

Property and equipment, net (Note 3) 12,254,694 11,365,578 

Restricted cash 150,000 150,000 

$    19,349,485 $    18,091,553 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities: 

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

$          294,522 
268,208 

1,296,568 
1,859,298 

$          472,141 
289,658 

1,125,391 
1,887,190 

Long-term debt (Note 5) 5,866,475 5,692,897 

Paycheck Protection Program loan (Note 6) - 1,451,500 

Net assets: 
Without donor restrictions 
With donor restrictions (Note 7) 

11,574,677 
49,035 

11,623,712 

8,993,560 
66,406 

9,059,966 

$    19,349,485 $    18,091,553 

See accompanying notes.  3 



                 

                    
                                 
                        
                          
                              
                            
            

                 
                 
                 

                 
            

                    

                            
                          

                           

                    

                 

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Statements of Activities 

For the years ended June 30, 2021 2020 

Net assets without donor restrictions: 
Support and revenue: 

Enrollment fees: 
Resident students 
Resident students with disabilities 

Contributions: 
Federal, state, and local awards 
Paycheck Protection Program (Note 6) 

Rental income 
Interest income 
Fundraising and other income 
Net assets released from restrictions 

    Total support and revenue 

Expenses: 
Program expenses: 

Regular education 
Special education 
Other program 

Supporting services: 
Management and general 
    Total expenses 

Change in net assets without donor restrictions 

Net assets with donor restrictions: 
Contributions 
Net assets released from restrictions 

Change in net assets with donor restrictions 

Change in net assets 

Net assets - beginning 

Net assets - ending 

$      9,764,168 
1,253,608 

$      9,395,180 
1,118,972 

1,412,523 
1,451,500 

235,239 
11,874 

4,980 
62,406 

14,196,298 

660,666 
-

238,998 
110,681 

26,130 
34,328

11,584,955 

6,163,936 
1,648,374 
1,280,128 

5,631,052 
1,456,213 
1,429,652 

2,522,743 
11,615,181 

2,336,467
10,853,384 

2,581,117 731,571 

45,035 
(62,406) 

66,406 
(34,328) 

(17,371) 32,078 

2,563,746 763,649 

9,059,966 8,296,317 

$    11,623,712 $      9,059,966 

See accompanying notes.  4 



                 
                                                                                      
                                                                                                             
               

                                               
                                                        
                                                                                            
                                                                                 
                                                                      
                                                           
                                                                
                                                              
                                                                                            
                                                                                                  
                                                                                                      
                                                                                            
                                                                                            
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                  
                                                             
                                                                                            
                                 
                                                          

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Statement of Functional Expenses 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 

Number 

Administrative personnel 

of 
Positions 

20.8 

Regular 
Education 

$                     -

Special 
Education 

$                     -

Other 
Programs 

$                     -

Management 
and General 

$     1,207,313 $     
Total 
1,207,313 

Instructional personnel 99.5 3,560,356 1,023,908 - - 4,584,264 
Non-instructional personnel 19.5 - - 821,739 - 821,739 
Total salaries 139.8 $     3,560,356 $     1,023,908 $        821,739 $     1,207,313 $     6,613,316 

Salaries $     3,560,356 $     1,023,908 $        821,739 $     1,207,313 $     6,613,316 
Employee benefits and taxes 947,717 273,647 220,000 333,550 1,774,914 
Retirement 333,935 103,304 51,582 60,338 549,159 
Professional fees - - - 279,963 279,963 
Other purchased and consulting services 14,248 131,801 - - 146,049 
Rent expense 32,994 - 42,892 204,735 280,621 
Repairs and maintenance 110,203 33,610 18,406 22,817 185,036 
Insurance 31,859 1,399 36,244 74,645 144,147 
Utilities 80,431 24,610 12,736 14,985 132,762 
Supplies and materials 105,016 - - - 105,016 
Staff development 46,271 - - - 46,271 
Marketing and recruitment - - - 5,050 5,050 
Technology 172,951 - - - 172,951 
Student services 132,841 - - - 132,841 
Afterschool - - 3,511 - 3,511 
Office expense - - - 57,772 57,772 
Interest 68,426 6,406 64,817 131,523 271,172 
Other expenses 330 - - 25,465 25,795 

5,637,578 1,598,685 1,271,927 2,418,156 10,926,346 
Depreciation 526,358 49,689 8,201 104,587 688,835 

Total $     6,163,936 $     1,648,374 $     1,280,128 $     2,522,743 $   11,615,181 

See accompanying notes.  5 



                 
                                                                                          
                                                                                                               
               

                                                   
                                                           
                                                                                              
                                                                                   
                                                                                              
                                                             
                                                               
                                                               
                                                                                              
                                                                                              
                                                                                                  
                                                                                              
                                                                                              
                                                                                                  
                                                                                                  
                                                             
                                                                                       
                                 
                                                               

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Statement of Functional Expenses 

For the year ended June 30, 2020 

Number 
of Regular Special Other Management 

Positions Education Education Programs and General Total 
Administrative personnel 23.8 $                     - $                     - $                     - $     1,113,736 $     1,113,760 
Instructional personnel 86.8 3,280,968 845,263 - - 4,126,318 
Non-instructional personnel 10.4 - - 623,339 - 623,349 
Total salaries 121.0 $     3,280,968 $        845,263 $        623,339 $     1,113,736 $     5,863,306 

Salaries $     3,280,968 $        845,263 $        623,339 $     1,113,736 $     5,863,306 
Employee benefits and taxes 693,392 223,135 393,257 265,465 1,575,249 
Retirement 206,721 67,338 112,227 67,156 453,442 
Professional fees - - - 233,770 233,770 
Other purchased and consulting services 37,399 160,742 - - 198,141 
Rent expense - - - 287,482 287,482 
Repairs and maintenance 139,466 45,649 83,251 54,651 323,017 
Insurance 49,442 16,173 29,935 20,028 115,578 
Utilities 63,937 21,010 40,235 27,491 152,673 
Supplies and materials 160,656 - - - 160,656 
Staff development 102,935 - - - 102,935 
Marketing and recruitment - - - 21,261 21,261 
Technology 146,236 - - - 146,236 
Student services 149,542 - - - 149,542 
Afterschool - - 78,532 - 78,532 
Office expense - - - 63,681 63,681 
Interest 102,883 30,057 60,580 60,844 254,364 
Other expenses 16,833 - - 21,112 37,945 

5,150,410 1,409,367 1,421,356 2,236,677 10,217,810 
Depreciation 480,642 46,846 8,296 99,790 635,574 

Total $     5,631,052 $     1,456,213 $     1,429,652 $     2,336,467 $   10,853,384 

See accompanying notes.  6 



                    
                        
                          
              
              
                     

                 

                  

                  
                                 
                                  

                           

                   

                 

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended June 30, 2021 2020 

Operating activities: 
Cash received from enrollment fees 
Cash received from contributions - federal, state, and local awards 
Cash received from rents 
Cash received from other sources 
Payments to employees for services and benefits 
Payments to vendors and suppliers 
Interest paid 

$    11,035,493 
1,055,523 

235,239 
16,854 

(8,764,198) 
(1,777,560) 

(238,755) 

$    10,066,133 
814,487 
238,998 
136,811 

(7,857,836) 
(2,069,342) 

(247,955) 

Net operating activities 1,562,596 1,081,296 

Investing activities: 
Property and equipment expenditures (1,727,741) (655,311) 

Financing activities: 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Proceeds from Paycheck Protection Program loan 

(6,215,779) 
6,211,738 

-

(462,456) 
-

1,451,500 

Net financing activities (4,041) 989,044 

Net change in cash and restricted cash (169,186) 1,415,029 

Cash and restricted cash - beginning 6,085,211 4,670,182 

Cash and restricted cash - ending $      5,916,025 $      6,085,211 

See accompanying notes.  7 



 

 

 

  

 

 

 

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Organization and Purpose: 

Elmwood Village Charter Schools (the Organization) operates 
Elmwood Village Charter School Days Park (EVCS Days Park) 
and Elmwood Village Charter School Hertel (EVCSC Hertel) in 
the City of Buffalo, New York (the City) authorized by the 
Board of Trustees of the State University of New York (Board 
of Trustees). 

EVCS Days Park is chartered through June 2025 and EVCS 
Hertel is chartered through July 2022. Continuance of 
operations after these dates is contingent upon charter 
renewal approvals. 

EVCS Days Park currently offers classes from kindergarten 
through eighth grade. EVCS Hertel offered classes from 
kindergarten through fifth grade in 2021 (kindergarten 
through fourth in 2020). 

Subsequent Events: 

Management has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through October 20, 2021, 
the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

Cash: 

Cash in financial institutions potentially subjects the 
Organization to concentrations of credit risk, since it may 
exceed insured limits at various times throughout the year. 
The Organization complies with a requirement to hold no less 
than $150,000 in an escrow account to pay legal and audit 
expenses that would be associated with dissolution should it 
occur.  This is included as restricted cash on the balance 
sheets as of June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

Property and Equipment: 

Property and equipment is stated at cost net of accumulated 
depreciation.  Depreciation is provided over estimated asset 
service lives using the straight-line method. Maintenance and 
repairs are charged to operations as incurred; significant 
improvements are capitalized. 

Revenue Recognition: 

Enrollment Fees 
Enrollment fees are received from the public-school districts 
where the students reside. The amount received each year 
from the resident district is generally the product of the 
approved operating expense per pupil and the full time 
equivalent enrollment of the students in the Organization 
residing in that district. The respective districts also reimburse 
the Organization for special education service based on 
approved applicable rates for the services provided. 
Revenues are recognized over the period the services are 
provided. The Organization generally invoices the resident 
district bimonthly and payment is due in 30 days.  Enrollment 
fees received in advance are deferred and recognized when 
earned. The Organization’s enrollment fees are received 
primarily from the Board of Education for the City School 
District (the District). 

Contributions 
Contributions are reported at fair value at the date the pledge 
or award is received. Contributions are recorded as restricted 
support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit 
their use. When a donor restriction expires, net assets with 
donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor 
restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net 
assets released from restrictions. Contributions received with 
donor-imposed restrictions that are met in the same reporting 
period are shown as support without donor restrictions. 

Conditional contributions, primarily government awards, are 
recorded as revenue when the Organization meets 
requirements in compliance with specific agreements. When 
applicable, amounts received before the required conditions 
are met are reported as refundable advances on the 
accompanying balance sheets. These conditional 
contributions are subject to compliance and financial audits 
by the funding sources.  Management believes no significant 
adjustments are necessary to recognized amounts. 

Receivables 
Receivables are stated at the amounts management expects 
to collect from outstanding balances.  Balances that are 
outstanding after management has used reasonable 
collection efforts are written off through a charge to 
uncollectible receivables and a credit to accounts receivable. 
An allowance for doubtful accounts is considered unnecessary 
by management because all significant amounts deemed 
uncollectible are written off each year. 
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Income Taxes: 

The Organization is a 501(c)(3) corporation exempt from 
taxation under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

Transportation and Food Services: 

Several districts provide the Organization with certain 
transportation services without cost.  The District also 
provides food services without cost.  The value of these 
services has not been recorded in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Functional Expense Allocation: 

The Organization’s costs of providing its various programs and 
activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs 
have been allocated among the programs and supporting 
services benefited. These costs include salaries, benefits, and 
payroll taxes, which are allocated based on estimates of time 
and effort, and depreciation, interest, and repairs and 
maintenance, which are allocated based on management’s 
estimate of program benefit. 

2. Receivables: 

2021 2020 
Enrollment fees $ 480,031 $ 497,748 
Grants 506,862 106,841 

$ 986,893 $ 604,589 

Enrollment fees receivable as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 
include amounts withheld by the District for disputed rates of 
special education services provided by the Organization from 
2008 through 2018 (Note 12). 

3.  Property and Equipment: 

2021 2020 
Land $ 546,400 $ 546,400 
Building and improvements 13,875,958 12,137,822 
Leasehold improvements 140,806 140,806 
Instructional equipment 1,256,625 1,073,365 
Office equipment 446,970 439,867 
Construction in progress - 350,548 

16,266,759 14,688,808 
Less accumulated depreciation 4,012,065 3,323,230 

$ 12,254,694 $ 11,365,578 

Construction in progress at June 30, 2020 represented a 
renovation project at EVCS Days Park. The project was 
completed in March 2021 at a total cost of approximately 
$1,513,000. 

4.  Short-Term Borrowings: 

The Organization has available a $200,000 bank demand line 
of credit for working capital with interest payable at prime 
plus .25%. The line is subject to the usual terms and 
conditions applied by the bank for working capital financing, 
secured by essentially all assets of the Organization, and is 
annually reviewed and renewed.  There were no borrowings 
on the line of credit at June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

5. Long Term Debt: 

2021 2020 
Bank mortgage note payable, monthly 

installments of $33,252 including 
interest at 3.152%, secured by 
Organization property and equipment, 
balloon payment of approximately 
$4,756,000 due March 2026. $ 5,842,828 $ -

Bank note payable, monthly installments 
of $5,644 including interest at 3.152%, 
secured by Organization property and 
equipment, due through March 2026. 298,648 -

Bank mortgage notes payable, monthly 
installments of $28,409 including 
interest at 3.675%, paid in full March 
2021. - 2,489,496 

Bank construction mortgage and term 
notes payable, monthly installments of 
$28,377 including interest at 3.675%, 
paid in full March 2021. - 3,625,875 

Equipment loans, varying monthly 
installments and interest rates, 
secured by related equipment, due 
through September 2024. 58,564 84,355 

6,200,040 6,199,726 
Less unamortized debt issuance costs 39,043 34,688 

6,160,997 6,165,038 
Less current portion 294,522 472,141 

$ 5,866,475 $ 5,692,897 
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Debt issuance costs are amortized as interest expense over 
the remaining term of the debt arrangements.  Amortization 
expense of debt issuance costs for the years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020 was $32,417 and $6,409 respectively. 

Aggregate maturities of net long-term debt balances at June 
30, 2021 are: 

2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 

$ 294,522 
290,843 
296,571 
295,086 

4,983,975 
$ 6,160,997 

The bank loan agreements contain certain covenants relating 
to, among other things, the maintenance of levels of debt 
service coverage and various other restrictions.  Management 
believes it complies with pertinent covenants. 

6.  Paycheck Protection Program Loan: 

In May 2020, the Organization received a loan of $1,451,500 
from the Small Business Administration (SBA) under the 
Paycheck Protection Program of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief 
and Economic Security (CARES) Act, in response to the 
pandemic described in Note 13.  The Organization has met the 
required conditions established by the SBA for loan 
forgiveness as of June 30, 2021 and the proceeds have been 
recognized as contributions revenue in the accompanying 
2021 statement of activities. 

7.  Net Assets with Donor Restrictions: 

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for use by the 
Organization to provide additional financial support for 
specific student purposes stipulated by the donor. 

8.  Retirement Plans: 

The Organization participates in the New York State Teachers’ 
Retirement System (TRS) which is a cost-sharing multiple 
employer public employee retirement system.  TRS offers a 
wide range of plans and benefits which are related to years of 
service and final average salary, vesting of retirement 
benefits, death and disability. 

TRS is administered by the New York State Teachers’ 
Retirement Board and provides benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and the 
Retirement and Social Security Law of the State of New York. 
TRS issues a publicly available financial report that contains 
financial statements and required supplementary 
information. The report may be obtained from TRS at 
www.nystrs.org. 

No employee contribution is required for those whose service 
began prior to July 1976. TRS requires employee contributions 
of 3% of salary for the first 10 years of service for those 
employees who joined from July 1976 through December 
2009. Participants whose service began on or after January 1, 
2010 through March 31, 2012 are required to contribute 3.5% 
of compensation throughout their active membership in TRS. 
Participants whose service began on or after April 1, 2012 are 
required to contribute a percentage ranging from 3% to 6% 
each year, based on their level of compensation. 

Pursuant to Article 11 of the Education Law, an actuarially 
determined contribution rate is established annually by the 
New York State Teachers’ Retirement Board.  The rate is 
9.53% of the annual covered payroll for the year ended June 
30, 2021, and 8.86% for the year ended June 30, 2020. The 
Organization’s required contributions for the years ended 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $513,578 and $422,479. 

The Organization also has a contributory defined contribution 
pension plan covering selected employee groups. The 
Organization contributes a percentage of non-instructional 
employees’ salaries to the plan, subject to certain limitations. 
The Organization’s pension expenses for the years ended June 
30, 2021 and 2020 were $35,581 and $30,963. 

9.  Operating Lease: 

The Organization leases property under the terms of a non-
cancelable operating lease.  Rental expense under this lease 
was $280,621 and $287,482 for the years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020.  The Organization purchased a building from 
the City during fiscal 2012, and entered into a non-cancellable 
sub lease for this property. 

Future minimum annual rentals due are: 

2022 $ 287,200 
2023 289,200 
2024 289,200 
2025 289,200 
2026 289,200 

Thereafter 24,100 
$ 1,468,100 
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Future minimum annual rentals to be received under the 
sublease are: 

2022 $ 235,900 
2023 255,600 
2024 257,400 
2025 257,400 
2026 257,400 

Thereafter 21,400 
$ 1,285,100 

10.  Cash Flows Information: 

The 2020 statement of cash flows excludes the effect of 
construction in progress included in accounts payable at June 
30, 2020 totaling $149,790. 

11. Financial Assets Available for Operations: 

The Organization obtains financial assets generally through 
enrollment fees, contributions, and rental income. The 
financial assets are acquired throughout the year to help meet 
the Organization’s cash needs for general expenditures. If 
necessary, the Organization also has access to a $200,000 
bank demand line of credit (Note 4). 

The Organization’s financial assets available within one year 
of the balance sheet date to meet cash needs for general 
expenditures consist of the following at June 30, 2021 and 
2020: 

2021 2020 
Cash available for operations $ 5,666,990 $ 5,868,805 
Receivables 986,893 604,589 

$ 6,653,883 $ 6,473,394 

12.  Contingency: 

In 2019, an audit by the Office of the New York State 
Comptroller determined the District had provided incorrect 
special education rates for over a decade.  As a result, there is 
a dispute with the rate used for aid that passes through the 
District to the Organization for special education services.  In 
February 2020, the District informed the Organization of its 
intent to recoup approximately $501,400 in special education 
aid paid over the past decade through a reduction in the 
District’s payments for enrollment fees earned by the 
Organization. The District recouped the special education aid 
in the 2019/2020 and 2020/2021 school years, which has 
been recorded as a receivable at June 30, 2021 and 2020 of 
approximately $501,400 and $250,700 (Note 2) in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

In April 2020, a court ruling determined that charter schools 
must first exhaust administrative remedies by submitting a 
State intercept form to the New York State Education 
Department Commissioner (the Commissioner) to recover 
monies withheld from the Organization. Consequently, the 
Organization has submitted a State intercept to the 
Commissioner and is following the administrative procedures 
to resolve the matter. No liability is recorded in these financial 
statements as management believes the Organization will be 
successful in challenging the District’s recoupment of funds 
through the State administrative procedure.  

13.  Risks and Uncertainties due to COVID-19: 

On January 31, 2020, the United States Secretary of Health 
and Human Services (HHS) declared a public health 
emergency related to the global spread of coronavirus COVID-
19, and a pandemic was declared by the World Health 
Organization in February 2020. Efforts to fight the widespread 
disease included limiting or closing many businesses and all 
schools and resulted in a severe disruption of operations for 
many organizations. 

In March 2020, the Organization transitioned to remote 
instruction for the remainder of the 2019-20 school year. 
During the 2020-21 school year, the Organization provided a 
hybrid in-person and remote instruction model in compliance 
with all government safety mandates. Consequently, 
enrollment fees and revenue for the years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020 were not reduced. 

The full extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the 
Organization’s operational and financial performance will 
depend on further developments, including the duration and 
spread of the outbreak, and its impact on schools, including 
its students and families, employees, and vendors, none of 
which can be predicted. 
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ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Additional Information 
Combining Statement of Activities 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 
With comparative totals for June 30, 2020 

Net assets without donor restrictions: 
Support and revenue: 

Enrollment fees: 
Resident students 
Resident students with disabilities 

Contributions: 
Federal, state, and local awards 
Paycheck Protection Program 

Rental income 
Interest income 
Fundraising and other income 
Net assets released from restrictions 

    Total support and revenue 

$      

EVCS 
Days Park 

5,827,721 
835,147 

643,591 
849,050 
235,239 

5,937 
575 

-
8,397,260 

$      

EVCS 
Hertel 

3,936,447 
418,461 

768,932 
602,450 

-
5,937 
4,405 

62,406 
5,799,038 

$      

Total 
2021 

9,764,168 
1,253,608 

1,412,523 
1,451,500 

235,239 
11,874 

4,980 
62,406 

14,196,298 

$      

Total 
2020 

9,395,180 
1,118,972 

660,666 
-

238,998 
110,681 

26,130 
34,328

11,584,955 

Expenses: 
Program expenses: 

Regular education 
Special education 
Other program 

Supporting services: 
Management and general 
    Total expenses 

3,628,806 
1,009,274 

685,663 

1,381,160 
6,704,903 

2,535,130 
639,100 
594,465 

1,141,583 
4,910,278 

6,163,936 
1,648,374 
1,280,128 

2,522,743 
11,615,181 

5,631,052 
1,456,213 
1,429,652 

2,336,467
10,853,384 

Change in net assets without donor restrictions 1,692,357 888,760 2,581,117 731,571 

Net assets with donor restrictions: 
Contributions 
Net assets released from restrictions 

22,518 
-

22,517 
(62,406) 

45,035 
(62,406) 

66,406 
(34,328) 

Change in net assets with donor restrictions 22,518 (39,889) (17,371) 32,078 

Changes in net assets 1,714,875 848,871 2,563,746 763,649 

Net assets - beginning 8,246,188 813,778 9,059,966 8,296,317 

Net assets - ending $      9,961,063 $      1,662,649 $    11,623,712 $      9,059,966 
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ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Additional Information 
Combining Statement of Functional Expenses 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 
With comparative totals for June 30, 2020 

EVCS Days Park 
Number 

of Regular Special Other Management 
Positions Education Education Programs and General Total 

Administrative personnel 10.9 $                       - $                       - $ - $          641,693 $           641,693 
Instructional personnel 59.5 2,167,275 649,434 - - 2,816,709 
Non-instructional personnel 10.2 - - 447,493 - 447,493 
Total salaries 80.6 $      2,167,275 $         649,434 $         447,493 $          641,693 $       3,905,895 

Salaries $      2,167,275 $         649,434 $         447,493 $          641,693 $       3,905,895 
Employee benefits and taxes 597,237 178,398 124,204 180,994 1,080,833 
Retirement 200,707 63,396 29,151 33,194 326,448 
Professional fees - - - 140,169 140,169 
Other purchased and consulting services 8,252 63,991 - - 72,243 
Rent expense 16,497 - 21,446 160,194 198,137 
Repairs and maintenance 55,294 17,305 8,618 10,432 91,649 
Insurance 16,620 930 18,204 37,406 73,160 
Utilities 29,695 9,389 4,280 4,838 48,202 
Supplies and materials 58,638 - - - 58,638 
Staff development 25,885 - - - 25,885 
Marketing and recruitment - - - 2,525 2,525 
Technology 94,698 - - - 94,698 
Student services 68,542 - - - 68,542 
Afterschool - - - - -
Office expense - - - 27,077 27,077 
Interest 25,194 510 30,887 63,927 120,518 
Other expenses 330 - - 12,206 12,536 

3,364,864 983,353 684,283 1,314,655 6,347,155 
Depreciation 263,942 25,921 1,380 66,505 357,748 

Total $      3,628,806 $      1,009,274 $         685,663 $       1,381,160 $       6,704,903 



                                  
                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                                             
           

   
                                                                                        
                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                       
                                                                                                           
                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                                             
                                                                    
                                                                                                   

   

EVCS Hertel 
Number 

of 
Positions 

9.9 $                          

Regular 
Education 

-

Special 
Education 

$                       -

Other 
Programs 

$ -

Management 
and General 

$         565,620 $            
Total 

565,620 $          

Total 
2021 
1,207,313 $      

Total 
2020 
1,113,736 

40.0 1,393,081 374,474 - - 1,767,555 4,584,264 4,126,231 
9.3 - - 374,246 - 374,246 821,739 623,339 

59.2 $         1,393,081 $          374,474 $         374,246 $         565,620 $     2,707,421 $          6,613,316 $      5,863,306 

$         1,393,081 $          374,474 $         374,246 $         565,620 $     2,707,421 $          6,613,316 $      5,863,306 
350,480 95,249 95,796 152,556 694,081 1,774,914 1,575,249 
133,228 39,908 22,431 27,144 222,711 549,159 453,442 

- - - 139,794 139,794 279,963 233,770 
5,996 67,810 - - 73,806 146,049 198,141 

16,497 - 21,446 44,541 82,484 280,621 287,482 
54,909 16,305 9,788 12,385 93,387 185,036 323,017 
15,239 469 18,040 37,239 70,987 144,147 115,578 
50,736 15,221 8,456 10,147 84,560 132,762 152,673 
46,378 - - - 46,378 105,016 160,656 
20,386 - - - 20,386 46,271 102,935 

- - - 2,525 2,525 5,050 21,261 
78,253 - - - 78,253 172,951 146,236 
64,299 - - - 64,299 132,841 149,542 

- - 3,511 - 3,511 3,511 78,532 
- - - 30,695 30,695 57,772 63,681 

43,232 5,896 33,930 67,596 150,654 271,172 254,364 
- - - 13,259 13,259 25,795 37,945 

2,272,714 615,332 587,644 1,103,501 4,579,191 10,926,346 10,217,810 
262,416 23,768 6,821 38,082 331,087 688,835 635,574 

$         2,535,130 $          639,100 $         594,465 $      1,141,583 $     4,910,278 $       11,615,181 $   10,853,384 
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ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Additional Information 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title
 CFDA 

 Number 
Grantor 
Number Expenditures 

U.S. Department of Education 
Passed through New York State Education Department: 

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
Charter Schools 
English Language Acquisition State Grants 
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 
Education Stabilization Fund - Elementary and Secondary School 

Emergency Relief Fund 
Education Stabilization Fund - Elementary and Secondary School 

Emergency Relief Fund 
Total New York State Education Department 

84.010 
84.282 
84.365 
84.367 
84.424 

84.425D 

84.425D 

0021-21-4340 
N/A 

0293-21-4340 
0147-21-4340 
0204-21-4340 

5890-21-4340 

5891-21-4340 

$         288,066 
49,950 
36,570 
33,875 
24,565 

327,137 

191,232 
951,395 

U.S. Department of Treasury 
Passed through Erie County: 

Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019 N/A 83,550 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $      1,034,945 

See accompanying notes.  14 







     
 

 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control or 
on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is 
not suitable for any other purpose. 

October 20, 2021 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered the Organization’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A 
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

October 20, 2021 
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ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOL HERTEL 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30, 2021 

ASSETS 2020-21 2019-20 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents  $  5,766,025  $  5,935,211 
Grants and contracts receivable 986,893 604,589 
Accounts receivables - -
Prepaid expenses                               191,873                                      36,175 
Contributions and other receivables                                             -                                                 - 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS                            6,944,791                                6,575,975 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net                          12,254,694                              11,365,578 

OTHER ASSETS                               150,000                                   150,000 

TOTAL ASSETS 19,349,485 18,091,553 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $  268,208  $  289,658 
Accrued payroll and benefits                            1,296,568                                1,125,391 
Deferred Revenue                                             -                                                 - 
Current maturities of long-term debt                               294,522                                   472,141 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable                                             -                                                 - 
Other                                             -                                                 - 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES                            1,859,298                                1,887,190 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred Rent                                             -                                                 - 
All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturities                            5,866,475                                7,144,397 

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES                            5,866,475                                7,144,397 

TOTAL LIABILITIES                            7,725,773                                9,031,587 

NET ASSETS 
Without Donor Restrictions                          11,574,677                                8,993,560 
With Donor Ristrictions                                  49,035                                      66,406 

TOTAL NET ASSETS                          11,623,712                                9,059,966 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET 
ASSETS                          19,349,485                              18,091,553 

CK - Should be zero - -



 

          

     
          
     
                             

                                

                                      
                                           
                                       
                                       

 

    
                

        
                      

                 
  

                          

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOL HERTEL 
Statement of Activities 

as of June 30, 2021 

 Without Donor 
Restrictions 

2020-21 
 With Donor 
Restrictions  Total 

2019-20

 Total 

REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Public School District

 Resident Student Enrollment 
 Students with disabilities

Grants and Contracts
 State and local 
 Federal - Title and IDEA 
 Federal - Other 
 Other 

NYC DoE Rental Assistance
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 

EXPENSES 
Program Services

 Regular Education 
 Special Education 
 Other Programs 

Total Program Services
Management and general
Fundraising

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions

 Foundations
 Individuals 
 Corporations 

Fundraising
Interest income
Miscellaneous income
Net assets released from restriction

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

 $        

 $  

 $  

     3,936,447 
                    418,461 

                                 - 
                    768,932 
                                 - 
                    602,450 
                                 - 
                                 - 

                5,726,290 

2,535,130 
                    639,100 
                    594,465 
                3,768,695 
                1,141,583 
                                 -
                4,910,278 

                    816,012 

-

                                 - 
                        4,405 
                        5,937 
                                 - 
                      62,406 
                      72,748 

                    888,760 

                    781,700 
                                 - 

 $  

 $                      

 $  

- 
                                 -

                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                                 - 

                                 - 

        - 
            - 
          - 

            - 
            - 

                                 - 
                                 - 

                                 - 

-
                      22,517 
                                 - 
                                 -
                                 - 
                                 - 
                    (62,406)
                    (39,889)

                    (39,889)

          32,078 
                                 - 

 $  

 $  

 $  

3,936,447 
                    418,461 

                                 - 
                    768,932 
                                 - 
                    602,450 

 - 
                                 - 

                5,726,290 

2,535,130 
                    639,100 
                    594,465 
                3,768,695 
                1,141,583 
                                 - 
                4,910,278 

                    816,012 

-
      22,517 

                                 - 
                        4,405 
                        5,937 
                                 - 
                                 - 
                      32,859 

                    848,871 

                    813,778 
                                 - 

 $            

 $                      

 $          

               3,391,930 
                         321,547 

                                          - 
                          90,944 

                                          - 
                  - 

                                               - 
                                               - 

                              3,804,421 

     2,158,049 
                525,139 

             672,231 
            3,355,419 
            1,051,495 

                                               - 
                              4,406,914 

                                (602,493) 

                    430,867 
                                    15,426 

                                       - 
                 1,023 

                   55,421 
                                    1,020 

                                               - 
                                 503,757 

                                  (98,736) 

                   912,514 
                                               - 

NET ASSETS END OF YEAR  $  1,670,460  $  (7,811)  $             1,662,649  $  813,778 



                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                      
                                                   

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOL HERTEL 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30, 2021 

2020-21 2019-20 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets  $  11,035,493  $  10,066,133 
Revenues from School Districts - -
Accounts Receivable - -
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciation - -
Grants Receivable - -
Due from NYS - -
Grant revenues -                                                     - 
Prepaid Expenses                                                     -                                                     - 
Accounts Payable                                  (1,777,560)                                  (2,069,342) 
Accrued Expenses                                  (8,764,198)                                  (7,857,836) 
Accrued Liabilities                                                     -                                                     - 
Contributions and fund-raising activities                                    1,055,523                                       814,487 
Miscellaneous sources                                         16,854                                       136,811 
Deferred Revenue                                                     -                                                     - 
Interest payments                                     (238,755)                                     (247,955) 
Other                                       235,239                                       238,998 
Other                                                     -                                                     - 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  $  1,562,596  $  1,081,296 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment                                  (1,727,741)                                     (655,311) 
Other                                                     -                                                     - 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  $  (1,727,741)  $  (655,311) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt                                  (6,215,779)                                     (462,456) 
Other                                    6,211,738                                    1,451,500 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  $  (4,041)  $  989,044 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  $  (169,186)  $  1,415,029 
Cash at beginning of year                                    6,085,211                                    4,670,182 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR  $  5,916,025  $  6,085,211 
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ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTING PACKAGE 

JUNE 30, 2021 







 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.  The 
accompanying additional information as listed in the table of contents, including the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. 

The accompanying additional information, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, is the 
responsibility of management and is derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 20, 2021 on our 
consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report 
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  

October 20, 2021 

2 



                        
                          
                 

            

                        

                        
                 
                 

                 

                                  

               
                            
               

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Balance Sheets 

June 30, 2021 2020 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash 
Receivables (Note 2) 
Prepaid expenses and other 

$      5,766,025 
986,893 
191,873 

6,944,791 

$      5,935,211 
604,589 

36,175 
6,575,975 

Property and equipment, net (Note 3) 12,254,694 11,365,578 

Restricted cash 150,000 150,000 

$    19,349,485 $    18,091,553 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Current liabilities: 

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

$          294,522 
268,208 

1,296,568 
1,859,298 

$          472,141 
289,658 

1,125,391 
1,887,190 

Long-term debt (Note 5) 5,866,475 5,692,897 

Paycheck Protection Program loan (Note 6) - 1,451,500 

Net assets: 
Without donor restrictions 
With donor restrictions (Note 7) 

11,574,677 
49,035 

11,623,712 

8,993,560 
66,406 

9,059,966 

$    19,349,485 $    18,091,553 

See accompanying notes.  3 



                 

                    
                                 
                        
                          
                              
                            
            

                 
                 
                 

                 
            

                    

                            
                          

                           

                    

                 

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Statements of Activities 

For the years ended June 30, 2021 2020 

Net assets without donor restrictions: 
Support and revenue: 

Enrollment fees: 
Resident students 
Resident students with disabilities 

Contributions: 
Federal, state, and local awards 
Paycheck Protection Program (Note 6) 

Rental income 
Interest income 
Fundraising and other income 
Net assets released from restrictions 

    Total support and revenue 

Expenses: 
Program expenses: 

Regular education 
Special education 
Other program 

Supporting services: 
Management and general 
    Total expenses 

Change in net assets without donor restrictions 

Net assets with donor restrictions: 
Contributions 
Net assets released from restrictions 

Change in net assets with donor restrictions 

Change in net assets 

Net assets - beginning 

Net assets - ending 

$      9,764,168 
1,253,608 

$      9,395,180 
1,118,972 

1,412,523 
1,451,500 

235,239 
11,874 

4,980 
62,406 

14,196,298 

660,666 
-

238,998 
110,681 

26,130 
34,328

11,584,955 

6,163,936 
1,648,374 
1,280,128 

5,631,052 
1,456,213 
1,429,652 

2,522,743 
11,615,181 

2,336,467
10,853,384 

2,581,117 731,571 

45,035 
(62,406) 

66,406 
(34,328) 

(17,371) 32,078 

2,563,746 763,649 

9,059,966 8,296,317 

$    11,623,712 $      9,059,966 

See accompanying notes.  4 



                 
                                                                                      
                                                                                                             
               

                                               
                                                        
                                                                                            
                                                                                 
                                                                      
                                                           
                                                                
                                                              
                                                                                            
                                                                                                  
                                                                                                      
                                                                                            
                                                                                            
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                  
                                                             
                                                                                            
                                 
                                                          

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Statement of Functional Expenses 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 

Number 

Administrative personnel 

of 
Positions 

20.8 

Regular 
Education 

$                     -

Special 
Education 

$                     -

Other 
Programs 

$                     -

Management 
and General 

$     1,207,313 $     
Total 
1,207,313 

Instructional personnel 99.5 3,560,356 1,023,908 - - 4,584,264 
Non-instructional personnel 19.5 - - 821,739 - 821,739 
Total salaries 139.8 $     3,560,356 $     1,023,908 $        821,739 $     1,207,313 $     6,613,316 

Salaries $     3,560,356 $     1,023,908 $        821,739 $     1,207,313 $     6,613,316 
Employee benefits and taxes 947,717 273,647 220,000 333,550 1,774,914 
Retirement 333,935 103,304 51,582 60,338 549,159 
Professional fees - - - 279,963 279,963 
Other purchased and consulting services 14,248 131,801 - - 146,049 
Rent expense 32,994 - 42,892 204,735 280,621 
Repairs and maintenance 110,203 33,610 18,406 22,817 185,036 
Insurance 31,859 1,399 36,244 74,645 144,147 
Utilities 80,431 24,610 12,736 14,985 132,762 
Supplies and materials 105,016 - - - 105,016 
Staff development 46,271 - - - 46,271 
Marketing and recruitment - - - 5,050 5,050 
Technology 172,951 - - - 172,951 
Student services 132,841 - - - 132,841 
Afterschool - - 3,511 - 3,511 
Office expense - - - 57,772 57,772 
Interest 68,426 6,406 64,817 131,523 271,172 
Other expenses 330 - - 25,465 25,795 

5,637,578 1,598,685 1,271,927 2,418,156 10,926,346 
Depreciation 526,358 49,689 8,201 104,587 688,835 

Total $     6,163,936 $     1,648,374 $     1,280,128 $     2,522,743 $   11,615,181 

See accompanying notes.  5 



                 
                                                                                          
                                                                                                               
               

                                                   
                                                           
                                                                                              
                                                                                   
                                                                                              
                                                             
                                                               
                                                               
                                                                                              
                                                                                              
                                                                                                  
                                                                                              
                                                                                              
                                                                                                  
                                                                                                  
                                                             
                                                                                       
                                 
                                                               

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Statement of Functional Expenses 

For the year ended June 30, 2020 

Number 
of Regular Special Other Management 

Positions Education Education Programs and General Total 
Administrative personnel 23.8 $                     - $                     - $                     - $     1,113,736 $     1,113,760 
Instructional personnel 86.8 3,280,968 845,263 - - 4,126,318 
Non-instructional personnel 10.4 - - 623,339 - 623,349 
Total salaries 121.0 $     3,280,968 $        845,263 $        623,339 $     1,113,736 $     5,863,306 

Salaries $     3,280,968 $        845,263 $        623,339 $     1,113,736 $     5,863,306 
Employee benefits and taxes 693,392 223,135 393,257 265,465 1,575,249 
Retirement 206,721 67,338 112,227 67,156 453,442 
Professional fees - - - 233,770 233,770 
Other purchased and consulting services 37,399 160,742 - - 198,141 
Rent expense - - - 287,482 287,482 
Repairs and maintenance 139,466 45,649 83,251 54,651 323,017 
Insurance 49,442 16,173 29,935 20,028 115,578 
Utilities 63,937 21,010 40,235 27,491 152,673 
Supplies and materials 160,656 - - - 160,656 
Staff development 102,935 - - - 102,935 
Marketing and recruitment - - - 21,261 21,261 
Technology 146,236 - - - 146,236 
Student services 149,542 - - - 149,542 
Afterschool - - 78,532 - 78,532 
Office expense - - - 63,681 63,681 
Interest 102,883 30,057 60,580 60,844 254,364 
Other expenses 16,833 - - 21,112 37,945 

5,150,410 1,409,367 1,421,356 2,236,677 10,217,810 
Depreciation 480,642 46,846 8,296 99,790 635,574 

Total $     5,631,052 $     1,456,213 $     1,429,652 $     2,336,467 $   10,853,384 

See accompanying notes.  6 



                    
                        
                          
              
              
                     

                 

                  

                  
                                 
                                  

                           

                   

                 

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended June 30, 2021 2020 

Operating activities: 
Cash received from enrollment fees 
Cash received from contributions - federal, state, and local awards 
Cash received from rents 
Cash received from other sources 
Payments to employees for services and benefits 
Payments to vendors and suppliers 
Interest paid 

$    11,035,493 
1,055,523 

235,239 
16,854 

(8,764,198) 
(1,777,560) 

(238,755) 

$    10,066,133 
814,487 
238,998 
136,811 

(7,857,836) 
(2,069,342) 

(247,955) 

Net operating activities 1,562,596 1,081,296 

Investing activities: 
Property and equipment expenditures (1,727,741) (655,311) 

Financing activities: 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Proceeds from Paycheck Protection Program loan 

(6,215,779) 
6,211,738 

-

(462,456) 
-

1,451,500 

Net financing activities (4,041) 989,044 

Net change in cash and restricted cash (169,186) 1,415,029 

Cash and restricted cash - beginning 6,085,211 4,670,182 

Cash and restricted cash - ending $      5,916,025 $      6,085,211 

See accompanying notes.  7 



 

 

 

  

 

 

 

ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Organization and Purpose: 

Elmwood Village Charter Schools (the Organization) operates 
Elmwood Village Charter School Days Park (EVCS Days Park) 
and Elmwood Village Charter School Hertel (EVCSC Hertel) in 
the City of Buffalo, New York (the City) authorized by the 
Board of Trustees of the State University of New York (Board 
of Trustees). 

EVCS Days Park is chartered through June 2025 and EVCS 
Hertel is chartered through July 2022. Continuance of 
operations after these dates is contingent upon charter 
renewal approvals. 

EVCS Days Park currently offers classes from kindergarten 
through eighth grade. EVCS Hertel offered classes from 
kindergarten through fifth grade in 2021 (kindergarten 
through fourth in 2020). 

Subsequent Events: 

Management has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through October 20, 2021, 
the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

Cash: 

Cash in financial institutions potentially subjects the 
Organization to concentrations of credit risk, since it may 
exceed insured limits at various times throughout the year. 
The Organization complies with a requirement to hold no less 
than $150,000 in an escrow account to pay legal and audit 
expenses that would be associated with dissolution should it 
occur.  This is included as restricted cash on the balance 
sheets as of June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

Property and Equipment: 

Property and equipment is stated at cost net of accumulated 
depreciation.  Depreciation is provided over estimated asset 
service lives using the straight-line method. Maintenance and 
repairs are charged to operations as incurred; significant 
improvements are capitalized. 

Revenue Recognition: 

Enrollment Fees 
Enrollment fees are received from the public-school districts 
where the students reside. The amount received each year 
from the resident district is generally the product of the 
approved operating expense per pupil and the full time 
equivalent enrollment of the students in the Organization 
residing in that district. The respective districts also reimburse 
the Organization for special education service based on 
approved applicable rates for the services provided. 
Revenues are recognized over the period the services are 
provided. The Organization generally invoices the resident 
district bimonthly and payment is due in 30 days.  Enrollment 
fees received in advance are deferred and recognized when 
earned. The Organization’s enrollment fees are received 
primarily from the Board of Education for the City School 
District (the District). 

Contributions 
Contributions are reported at fair value at the date the pledge 
or award is received. Contributions are recorded as restricted 
support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit 
their use. When a donor restriction expires, net assets with 
donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor 
restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net 
assets released from restrictions. Contributions received with 
donor-imposed restrictions that are met in the same reporting 
period are shown as support without donor restrictions. 

Conditional contributions, primarily government awards, are 
recorded as revenue when the Organization meets 
requirements in compliance with specific agreements. When 
applicable, amounts received before the required conditions 
are met are reported as refundable advances on the 
accompanying balance sheets. These conditional 
contributions are subject to compliance and financial audits 
by the funding sources.  Management believes no significant 
adjustments are necessary to recognized amounts. 

Receivables 
Receivables are stated at the amounts management expects 
to collect from outstanding balances.  Balances that are 
outstanding after management has used reasonable 
collection efforts are written off through a charge to 
uncollectible receivables and a credit to accounts receivable. 
An allowance for doubtful accounts is considered unnecessary 
by management because all significant amounts deemed 
uncollectible are written off each year. 
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Income Taxes: 

The Organization is a 501(c)(3) corporation exempt from 
taxation under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

Transportation and Food Services: 

Several districts provide the Organization with certain 
transportation services without cost.  The District also 
provides food services without cost.  The value of these 
services has not been recorded in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Functional Expense Allocation: 

The Organization’s costs of providing its various programs and 
activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs 
have been allocated among the programs and supporting 
services benefited. These costs include salaries, benefits, and 
payroll taxes, which are allocated based on estimates of time 
and effort, and depreciation, interest, and repairs and 
maintenance, which are allocated based on management’s 
estimate of program benefit. 

2. Receivables: 

2021 2020 
Enrollment fees $ 480,031 $ 497,748 
Grants 506,862 106,841 

$ 986,893 $ 604,589 

Enrollment fees receivable as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 
include amounts withheld by the District for disputed rates of 
special education services provided by the Organization from 
2008 through 2018 (Note 12). 

3.  Property and Equipment: 

2021 2020 
Land $ 546,400 $ 546,400 
Building and improvements 13,875,958 12,137,822 
Leasehold improvements 140,806 140,806 
Instructional equipment 1,256,625 1,073,365 
Office equipment 446,970 439,867 
Construction in progress - 350,548 

16,266,759 14,688,808 
Less accumulated depreciation 4,012,065 3,323,230 

$ 12,254,694 $ 11,365,578 

Construction in progress at June 30, 2020 represented a 
renovation project at EVCS Days Park. The project was 
completed in March 2021 at a total cost of approximately 
$1,513,000. 

4.  Short-Term Borrowings: 

The Organization has available a $200,000 bank demand line 
of credit for working capital with interest payable at prime 
plus .25%. The line is subject to the usual terms and 
conditions applied by the bank for working capital financing, 
secured by essentially all assets of the Organization, and is 
annually reviewed and renewed.  There were no borrowings 
on the line of credit at June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

5. Long Term Debt: 

2021 2020 
Bank mortgage note payable, monthly 

installments of $33,252 including 
interest at 3.152%, secured by 
Organization property and equipment, 
balloon payment of approximately 
$4,756,000 due March 2026. $ 5,842,828 $ -

Bank note payable, monthly installments 
of $5,644 including interest at 3.152%, 
secured by Organization property and 
equipment, due through March 2026. 298,648 -

Bank mortgage notes payable, monthly 
installments of $28,409 including 
interest at 3.675%, paid in full March 
2021. - 2,489,496 

Bank construction mortgage and term 
notes payable, monthly installments of 
$28,377 including interest at 3.675%, 
paid in full March 2021. - 3,625,875 

Equipment loans, varying monthly 
installments and interest rates, 
secured by related equipment, due 
through September 2024. 58,564 84,355 

6,200,040 6,199,726 
Less unamortized debt issuance costs 39,043 34,688 

6,160,997 6,165,038 
Less current portion 294,522 472,141 

$ 5,866,475 $ 5,692,897 
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Debt issuance costs are amortized as interest expense over 
the remaining term of the debt arrangements.  Amortization 
expense of debt issuance costs for the years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020 was $32,417 and $6,409 respectively. 

Aggregate maturities of net long-term debt balances at June 
30, 2021 are: 

2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 

$ 294,522 
290,843 
296,571 
295,086 

4,983,975 
$ 6,160,997 

The bank loan agreements contain certain covenants relating 
to, among other things, the maintenance of levels of debt 
service coverage and various other restrictions.  Management 
believes it complies with pertinent covenants. 

6.  Paycheck Protection Program Loan: 

In May 2020, the Organization received a loan of $1,451,500 
from the Small Business Administration (SBA) under the 
Paycheck Protection Program of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief 
and Economic Security (CARES) Act, in response to the 
pandemic described in Note 13.  The Organization has met the 
required conditions established by the SBA for loan 
forgiveness as of June 30, 2021 and the proceeds have been 
recognized as contributions revenue in the accompanying 
2021 statement of activities. 

7.  Net Assets with Donor Restrictions: 

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for use by the 
Organization to provide additional financial support for 
specific student purposes stipulated by the donor. 

8.  Retirement Plans: 

The Organization participates in the New York State Teachers’ 
Retirement System (TRS) which is a cost-sharing multiple 
employer public employee retirement system.  TRS offers a 
wide range of plans and benefits which are related to years of 
service and final average salary, vesting of retirement 
benefits, death and disability. 

TRS is administered by the New York State Teachers’ 
Retirement Board and provides benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and the 
Retirement and Social Security Law of the State of New York. 
TRS issues a publicly available financial report that contains 
financial statements and required supplementary 
information. The report may be obtained from TRS at 
www.nystrs.org. 

No employee contribution is required for those whose service 
began prior to July 1976. TRS requires employee contributions 
of 3% of salary for the first 10 years of service for those 
employees who joined from July 1976 through December 
2009. Participants whose service began on or after January 1, 
2010 through March 31, 2012 are required to contribute 3.5% 
of compensation throughout their active membership in TRS. 
Participants whose service began on or after April 1, 2012 are 
required to contribute a percentage ranging from 3% to 6% 
each year, based on their level of compensation. 

Pursuant to Article 11 of the Education Law, an actuarially 
determined contribution rate is established annually by the 
New York State Teachers’ Retirement Board.  The rate is 
9.53% of the annual covered payroll for the year ended June 
30, 2021, and 8.86% for the year ended June 30, 2020. The 
Organization’s required contributions for the years ended 
June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $513,578 and $422,479. 

The Organization also has a contributory defined contribution 
pension plan covering selected employee groups. The 
Organization contributes a percentage of non-instructional 
employees’ salaries to the plan, subject to certain limitations. 
The Organization’s pension expenses for the years ended June 
30, 2021 and 2020 were $35,581 and $30,963. 

9.  Operating Lease: 

The Organization leases property under the terms of a non-
cancelable operating lease.  Rental expense under this lease 
was $280,621 and $287,482 for the years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020.  The Organization purchased a building from 
the City during fiscal 2012, and entered into a non-cancellable 
sub lease for this property. 

Future minimum annual rentals due are: 

2022 $ 287,200 
2023 289,200 
2024 289,200 
2025 289,200 
2026 289,200 

Thereafter 24,100 
$ 1,468,100 

10 
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Future minimum annual rentals to be received under the 
sublease are: 

2022 $ 235,900 
2023 255,600 
2024 257,400 
2025 257,400 
2026 257,400 

Thereafter 21,400 
$ 1,285,100 

10.  Cash Flows Information: 

The 2020 statement of cash flows excludes the effect of 
construction in progress included in accounts payable at June 
30, 2020 totaling $149,790. 

11. Financial Assets Available for Operations: 

The Organization obtains financial assets generally through 
enrollment fees, contributions, and rental income. The 
financial assets are acquired throughout the year to help meet 
the Organization’s cash needs for general expenditures. If 
necessary, the Organization also has access to a $200,000 
bank demand line of credit (Note 4). 

The Organization’s financial assets available within one year 
of the balance sheet date to meet cash needs for general 
expenditures consist of the following at June 30, 2021 and 
2020: 

2021 2020 
Cash available for operations $ 5,666,990 $ 5,868,805 
Receivables 986,893 604,589 

$ 6,653,883 $ 6,473,394 

12.  Contingency: 

In 2019, an audit by the Office of the New York State 
Comptroller determined the District had provided incorrect 
special education rates for over a decade.  As a result, there is 
a dispute with the rate used for aid that passes through the 
District to the Organization for special education services.  In 
February 2020, the District informed the Organization of its 
intent to recoup approximately $501,400 in special education 
aid paid over the past decade through a reduction in the 
District’s payments for enrollment fees earned by the 
Organization. The District recouped the special education aid 
in the 2019/2020 and 2020/2021 school years, which has 
been recorded as a receivable at June 30, 2021 and 2020 of 
approximately $501,400 and $250,700 (Note 2) in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

In April 2020, a court ruling determined that charter schools 
must first exhaust administrative remedies by submitting a 
State intercept form to the New York State Education 
Department Commissioner (the Commissioner) to recover 
monies withheld from the Organization. Consequently, the 
Organization has submitted a State intercept to the 
Commissioner and is following the administrative procedures 
to resolve the matter. No liability is recorded in these financial 
statements as management believes the Organization will be 
successful in challenging the District’s recoupment of funds 
through the State administrative procedure.  

13.  Risks and Uncertainties due to COVID-19: 

On January 31, 2020, the United States Secretary of Health 
and Human Services (HHS) declared a public health 
emergency related to the global spread of coronavirus COVID-
19, and a pandemic was declared by the World Health 
Organization in February 2020. Efforts to fight the widespread 
disease included limiting or closing many businesses and all 
schools and resulted in a severe disruption of operations for 
many organizations. 

In March 2020, the Organization transitioned to remote 
instruction for the remainder of the 2019-20 school year. 
During the 2020-21 school year, the Organization provided a 
hybrid in-person and remote instruction model in compliance 
with all government safety mandates. Consequently, 
enrollment fees and revenue for the years ended June 30, 
2021 and 2020 were not reduced. 

The full extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the 
Organization’s operational and financial performance will 
depend on further developments, including the duration and 
spread of the outbreak, and its impact on schools, including 
its students and families, employees, and vendors, none of 
which can be predicted. 
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ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Additional Information 
Combining Statement of Activities 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 
With comparative totals for June 30, 2020 

Net assets without donor restrictions: 
Support and revenue: 

Enrollment fees: 
Resident students 
Resident students with disabilities 

Contributions: 
Federal, state, and local awards 
Paycheck Protection Program 

Rental income 
Interest income 
Fundraising and other income 
Net assets released from restrictions 

    Total support and revenue 

$      

EVCS 
Days Park 

5,827,721 
835,147 

643,591 
849,050 
235,239 

5,937 
575 

-
8,397,260 

$      

EVCS 
Hertel 

3,936,447 
418,461 

768,932 
602,450 

-
5,937 
4,405 

62,406 
5,799,038 

$      

Total 
2021 

9,764,168 
1,253,608 

1,412,523 
1,451,500 

235,239 
11,874 

4,980 
62,406 

14,196,298 

$      

Total 
2020 

9,395,180 
1,118,972 

660,666 
-

238,998 
110,681 

26,130 
34,328

11,584,955 

Expenses: 
Program expenses: 

Regular education 
Special education 
Other program 

Supporting services: 
Management and general 
    Total expenses 

3,628,806 
1,009,274 

685,663 

1,381,160 
6,704,903 

2,535,130 
639,100 
594,465 

1,141,583 
4,910,278 

6,163,936 
1,648,374 
1,280,128 

2,522,743 
11,615,181 

5,631,052 
1,456,213 
1,429,652 

2,336,467
10,853,384 

Change in net assets without donor restrictions 1,692,357 888,760 2,581,117 731,571 

Net assets with donor restrictions: 
Contributions 
Net assets released from restrictions 

22,518 
-

22,517 
(62,406) 

45,035 
(62,406) 

66,406 
(34,328) 

Change in net assets with donor restrictions 22,518 (39,889) (17,371) 32,078 

Changes in net assets 1,714,875 848,871 2,563,746 763,649 

Net assets - beginning 8,246,188 813,778 9,059,966 8,296,317 

Net assets - ending $      9,961,063 $      1,662,649 $    11,623,712 $      9,059,966 
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ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Additional Information 
Combining Statement of Functional Expenses 

For the year ended June 30, 2021 
With comparative totals for June 30, 2020 

EVCS Days Park 
Number 

of Regular Special Other Management 
Positions Education Education Programs and General Total 

Administrative personnel 10.9 $                       - $                       - $ - $          641,693 $           641,693 
Instructional personnel 59.5 2,167,275 649,434 - - 2,816,709 
Non-instructional personnel 10.2 - - 447,493 - 447,493 
Total salaries 80.6 $      2,167,275 $         649,434 $         447,493 $          641,693 $       3,905,895 

Salaries $      2,167,275 $         649,434 $         447,493 $          641,693 $       3,905,895 
Employee benefits and taxes 597,237 178,398 124,204 180,994 1,080,833 
Retirement 200,707 63,396 29,151 33,194 326,448 
Professional fees - - - 140,169 140,169 
Other purchased and consulting services 8,252 63,991 - - 72,243 
Rent expense 16,497 - 21,446 160,194 198,137 
Repairs and maintenance 55,294 17,305 8,618 10,432 91,649 
Insurance 16,620 930 18,204 37,406 73,160 
Utilities 29,695 9,389 4,280 4,838 48,202 
Supplies and materials 58,638 - - - 58,638 
Staff development 25,885 - - - 25,885 
Marketing and recruitment - - - 2,525 2,525 
Technology 94,698 - - - 94,698 
Student services 68,542 - - - 68,542 
Afterschool - - - - -
Office expense - - - 27,077 27,077 
Interest 25,194 510 30,887 63,927 120,518 
Other expenses 330 - - 12,206 12,536 

3,364,864 983,353 684,283 1,314,655 6,347,155 
Depreciation 263,942 25,921 1,380 66,505 357,748 

Total $      3,628,806 $      1,009,274 $         685,663 $       1,381,160 $       6,704,903 



                                  
                                                                                                               
                                                                                                                                             
           

   
                                                                                        
                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                       
                                                                                                           
                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                       
                                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                                             
                                                                    
                                                                                                   

   

EVCS Hertel 
Number 

of 
Positions 

9.9 $                          

Regular 
Education 

-

Special 
Education 

$                       -

Other 
Programs 

$ -

Management 
and General 

$         565,620 $            
Total 

565,620 $          

Total 
2021 
1,207,313 $      

Total 
2020 
1,113,736 

40.0 1,393,081 374,474 - - 1,767,555 4,584,264 4,126,231 
9.3 - - 374,246 - 374,246 821,739 623,339 

59.2 $         1,393,081 $          374,474 $         374,246 $         565,620 $     2,707,421 $          6,613,316 $      5,863,306 

$         1,393,081 $          374,474 $         374,246 $         565,620 $     2,707,421 $          6,613,316 $      5,863,306 
350,480 95,249 95,796 152,556 694,081 1,774,914 1,575,249 
133,228 39,908 22,431 27,144 222,711 549,159 453,442 

- - - 139,794 139,794 279,963 233,770 
5,996 67,810 - - 73,806 146,049 198,141 

16,497 - 21,446 44,541 82,484 280,621 287,482 
54,909 16,305 9,788 12,385 93,387 185,036 323,017 
15,239 469 18,040 37,239 70,987 144,147 115,578 
50,736 15,221 8,456 10,147 84,560 132,762 152,673 
46,378 - - - 46,378 105,016 160,656 
20,386 - - - 20,386 46,271 102,935 

- - - 2,525 2,525 5,050 21,261 
78,253 - - - 78,253 172,951 146,236 
64,299 - - - 64,299 132,841 149,542 

- - 3,511 - 3,511 3,511 78,532 
- - - 30,695 30,695 57,772 63,681 

43,232 5,896 33,930 67,596 150,654 271,172 254,364 
- - - 13,259 13,259 25,795 37,945 

2,272,714 615,332 587,644 1,103,501 4,579,191 10,926,346 10,217,810 
262,416 23,768 6,821 38,082 331,087 688,835 635,574 

$         2,535,130 $          639,100 $         594,465 $      1,141,583 $     4,910,278 $       11,615,181 $   10,853,384 
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ELMWOOD VILLAGE CHARTER SCHOOLS 

Additional Information 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the year ended June 30, 2021

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title
 CFDA 

 Number 
Grantor 
Number Expenditures 

U.S. Department of Education 
Passed through New York State Education Department: 

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
Charter Schools 
English Language Acquisition State Grants 
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 
Education Stabilization Fund - Elementary and Secondary School 

Emergency Relief Fund 
Education Stabilization Fund - Elementary and Secondary School 

Emergency Relief Fund 
Total New York State Education Department 

84.010 
84.282 
84.365 
84.367 
84.424 

84.425D 

84.425D 

0021-21-4340 
N/A 

0293-21-4340 
0147-21-4340 
0204-21-4340 

5890-21-4340 

5891-21-4340 

$         288,066 
49,950 
36,570 
33,875 
24,565 

327,137 

191,232 
951,395 

U.S. Department of Treasury 
Passed through Erie County: 

Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019 N/A 83,550 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $      1,034,945 

See accompanying notes.  14 







     
 

 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control or 
on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is 
not suitable for any other purpose. 

October 20, 2021 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered the Organization’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A 
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

October 20, 2021 
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Charter Funding Alphabetical By NYS School District 
* (Sum of Charter School Basic Tuition and Supplemental Basic Tuition) 
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